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Urgent Return Receipt Requested Sign Encrypt Mark Subject Restricted Expand personal&public groups

Fw: A/HSK/432進一步資料及澄清事宜
02/03/2023 14:03

From: tmylwdpo_pd/PLAND/HKSARG
To: Sherry Man Wa KONG/PLAND/HKSARG@PLAND
Cc: Simon PH CHAN/PLAND/HKSARG@PLAND, Charlie Siu Hin

TSUI/PLAND/HKSARG@PLAND
File Ref:

----- Forwarded by tmylwdpo_pd/PLAND/HKSARG on 02/03/2023 14:03 -----

From: tpbpd/PLAND/HKSARG
To: tmylwdpo@pland.gov.hk
Cc: Kiff Kit Fu YIU/PLAND/HKSARG@PLAND
Date: 02/03/2023 12:07
Subject: Fw: A/HSK/432進一步資料及澄清事宜

----- Forwarded by tpbpd/PLAND/HKSARG on 02/03/2023 12:07 -----

From: 陳灝然 
To: tpbpd@pland.gov.hk
Cc: 規劃署徐紹軒 <cshtsui@pland.gov.hk>
Date: 02/03/2023 10:22
Subject: A/HSK/432進一步資料及澄清事宜

敬啟者：
就上述檔案，現提交進一步資料以回應規劃署之疑問。
構築物 1為物流中心，非物流倉庫。物流中心用作商品配送、裝卸及包
裝。在申請地點裝卸的貨櫃車，進入申請地點前都會在進場前由職員預約
通知，故不會出現排隊輪候或阻塞公共道路的情況。申請地點有足夠空間
供車輛迴轉，可避免車輛以倒車方式進出場地，加上申請地點可以完全控
制貨物交收時間。在良好的管理下，不會出現任何交通問題。

如有任何疑問，歡迎致電 與許小姐聯絡。

此致
城規會 /規劃署

申請代理人
許幸如
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 申 請 理 由 

 申請地點位於新界元朗廈村丈量約份第129約地段第2381號餘段（部份）、第2382號 
 （部份）、第2384號A分段（部份）、第2384號B分段（部份）、第2186號（部份） 
 及第2187號餘段（部份），⾯積為 2955 平⽅米，由黃震邦先⽣提出申請，作為期三 
 年的擬議臨時物流中⼼，申請地點位於洪⽔橋及廈村分區計劃⼤綱圖（S/HSK/2）的 
 「商業 ( 5 )」及「休憩⽤地」地帶內。 

 申請地點不涉及政府⼟地，申請地點地型不規則，近似正⽅型，總⾯積約 2955 平⽅ 
 米，總樓⾯⾯積為約 2145 平⽅米。申請⼈已進⾏了合理步驟，於提交前已於地點當 
 眼位置張貼通告，並將通告郵寄到有關鄉事委員會張貼，以通知申請地點內的⼟地擁 
 有⼈有關申請發展事宜。（可參閱：場地位置圖） 

 按規劃署記錄，在申請地點所在的四周有不少類似案件獲通過： 
 ●  檔案編號：A/HSK/157，臨時露天存放貨櫃（為期3年），於 

 05/07/2019在有條件下批給臨時性質的許可； 
 ●  檔案編號：A/HSK/236，臨時貨倉連附屬地盤辦公室（為期3年），於 

 21/08/2020在有條件下批給臨時性質的許可； 
 ●  檔案編號：A/HSK/25，臨時密封倉儲及附屬辦公室（為期3年），於 

 24/11/2017在有條件下批給臨時性質的許可； 
 ●  檔案編號：A/YL-HT/1032，臨時露天存放貨櫃（為期3年），於 

 15/07/2016在有條件下批給臨時性質的許可； 
 ●  檔案編號：A/YL-HT/1039，臨時密封倉儲及附屬辦公室（為期3年）， 

 於12/08/2016在有條件下批給臨時性質的許可。 
 ●  檔案編號：A/YL-HT/503，臨時貨櫃⾞停⾞場、露天存放貨櫃和建築材 

 料連附屬汽⾞維修⼯場（為期3年），於14/09/2007在有條件下批給臨 
 時性質的許可。 

 ●  檔案編號：A/YL-HT/515，臨時物流中⼼、貨櫃⾞停⾞場、露天存放貨 
 櫃和建築材料連附屬⾞輛維修⼯場（為期 3 年），於30/11/2007在有條 
 件下批給臨時性質的許可。 

 ●  檔案編號：A/YL-HT/566，臨時物流中⼼、貨櫃⾞停⾞場、露天存放貨 
 櫃及建築材料連附屬⾞輛維修⼯場（為期 3 年），於19/09/2008在有條 
 件下批給臨時性質的許可。 

 ●  檔案編號：A/YL-HT/687，臨時物流中⼼、貨櫃⾞停⾞場、露天存放貨 
 櫃及建築材料連附屬⾞輛維修⼯場（為期 3 年），於13/08/2010在有條 
 件下批給臨時性質的許可。 



 ●  檔案編號：A/YL-HT/917，臨時露天存放貨櫃、貨物處理及貨櫃維修⼯ 
 場（為期 3 年），於31/10/2014在有條件下批給臨時性質的許可。 

 申請地點基本設施⿑備，無須進⾏任何斬樹、填池、鑽⼠及隔斷⽔源等損害環境的開 
 闢⼯作。申請地點内不會存放易燃物品，從事⼯作整⿑⽽簡單，容易還完，能與周圍 
 環境配合。發展項⽬不含有害廢料或污染物，不會發出氣味，對⽣態及環境不會帶來 
 任何負⾯影響。申請⼈會委託專業管理公司進⾏管理，實施附帶條件⼯程並為設備提 
 供維修及保養，包括現有樹⽊、渠道系統、消防裝置及現有的邊界圍欄等。管理公司 
 亦會負責環境衛⽣並按時派專員收集和清理垃圾，噴灑防蚊藥⽔，確保環境衛⽣及美 
 觀，相信場地發展後亦能繼續與社區保持和諧。申請⼈會遵從環保署署⻑最新發出的 
 《處理臨時⽤途及露天貯存⽤地的環境問題作業指引》，盡量減低可能對附近易受影 
 響地⽅所造成的環境影響。 

 申請地點發展作臨時物流中⼼，申請地點地內共設 6 個構築物，構築物序號 TS1 ⾄ 
 TS6，包含了寫宇樓、物流中⼼、電錶房及洗⼿間。6 個構築物共佔上蓋⾯積 2125 平 
 ⽅米，6 個構築物佔場地約 71.9% 的⼟地。以下為構築物的詳細資料： 

 構築物序號  上蓋⾯積 
 (平⽅米) 

 樓⾯⾯積 
 (平⽅米) 

 ⾼度 
 (米) 

 層數  建築物料  ⽤途 

 TS1  2090  2090  10  1  ⾦屬搭建  物流中⼼ 

 TS2  20  40  6  2  ⾦屬搭建  寫字樓 

 TS3  5  5  3  1  ⾦屬搭建  消防泵房 

 TS4  6  6  3  1  ⾦屬搭建  電錶房 

 TS5  2  2  3  1  ⾦屬搭建  洗⼿間 

 TS6  2  2  3  1  ⾦屬搭建  洗⼿間 

 申請地點設有 3 個貨櫃⾞上落貨⾞位（每個⾯積 16 米 x 3.5米）及 1 個私家⾞泊⾞位 
 （每個⾯積 5 米 x 2.5米），設置上落貨⾞位以供申請地點所屬的⾞輛輪候上落貨，作 
 短暫停泊之⽤。設立此區⽬的可確保申請地點發展不會影響附近交通。 

 餘下⾯積約 830 平⽅米的⼟地，佔申請地點約 28% ⼟地會⽤作流動空間。流動空間 
 具缓衝及協調作⽤，可紓缓發展對環境的影響。即場地設計圖内所⽰，申請地點內未 
 有註明的空⽩部份。 



 場地位於新界元朗臨近流浮⼭，出入⼝（閘⾨）設於場地東邊。出入⼝位置寬敞明確 
 ，可供消防⾞之類的緊急⾞輛進入，並連接⾏⾞通道接駁流浮⼭道，透過流浮⼭道貫 
 通新界道路網絡，⽅便往來各處。 

 ⾏⾞通道平坦寬廣且沒有彎位，已平整為混凝⼟地⾯，闊度近 20 米，可供駕駛者安 
 全使⽤。⾏⾞通道地段屬私⼈物業，由場地使⽤者管理，並非由運輸署。申請前已取 
 得業主同意。⾏⾞通道已使⽤多年，管理、維修及保養等⼯作由場地使⽤者與業主共 
 同負責。 

 流浮⼭道實況照片 

 ⾏⾞通道實況照片 

 申請地點開放時間，為星期⼀⾄星期六，每⽇早上八時⾄晚上八時，星期⽇及公眾假 
 期休息。必要運輸⼯作，會安排在⽇間非繁忙時間進⾏，晚上不會進⾏任何運輸⼯ 
 作。另外，下午八時⾄翌⽇早上八時，不會進⾏夜間作業。 

 申請地點的運輸⼯作並無迫切性，運輸⼯作可按交通情況靈活調配，必要的貨櫃交收 
 運輸⼯作，會安排在⽇間非繁忙時間進⾏。按實際經驗，每天早上八時⾄⼗時（場地 



 開放後）及下午四時⾄六時（場地關⾨前），屬物流場運作的繁忙時間。加上上午⼗ 
 ⼆時下午⾄⼆時為午膳時間，不會有上落貨的⼯作。⽽晚上六時以後，亦不會進⾏任 
 何運輸⼯作。故此，⼀般上落貨的汽⾞流量，只會出現在每天早上⼗時⾄上午⼗⼆時 
 及下午⼆時⾄四時的非繁忙時間進⾏。 

 在申請地點裝卸的貨櫃⾞均已有⾞位安排。由於儲存貨物涉及貴重物品，基於保安考 
 慮，申請地點不歡迎閒雜⾞輛進入，進入申請地點裝卸的⾞輛都會在進場前由職員預 
 約通知，故不會出現排隊輪候或阻塞公共道路的情況。申請地點有⾜夠空間供⾞輛迴 
 轉，可避免⾞輛以倒⾞⽅式進出場地，加上申請地點可以完全控制貨物交收時間。在 
 良好的管理下，不會出現任何交通問題，不會對流浮⼭及附近交通構成壓⼒。總括⽽ 
 ⾔，⾞輛流量極為穩定。除標題發展所涉及的交通活動外，不會有其他運輸⼯作。由 
 於進出申請地點的⾞輛數⽬極為穩定，故此⾞輛流量都可在預計之內。以下是申請地 
 點的交通流量預算，詳細如下： 

 星期⼀⾄六 

 貨櫃⾞上落貨  私家⾞ 

 入  出  入  出  每⼩時⾞輛出入次數 

 08:00 - 09:00  0  0  1  0  1 

 09:00 - 10:00  0  0  0  0  0 

 10:00 - 11:00  2  0  0  0  2 

 11:00 - 12:00  1  2  0  0  3 

 12:00 - 13:00  0  1  0  1  2 

 13:00 - 14:00  0  0  1  0  1 

 14:00 - 15:00  3  0  0  0  3 

 15:00 - 16:00  0  3  0  0  3 

 16:00 - 17:00  0  0  0  0  0 

 17:00 - 18:00  0  0  0  0  0 

 18:00 - 19:00  0  0  0  0  0 

 19:00 - 20:00  0  0  0  1  1 

 以上數字為預算⾞輛進出場地記錄， 
 假設當天附近地區沒有交通事故，進出場地⾞輛數量正常。 



 申請地點屬政府租契批租的舊批農地。此申請獲得通過後，申請⼈會依⾜規定，向地 
 政處就場地内上蓋物，進⾏上蓋牌照申請。 

 此申請發展能提⾼地區治安警覺性，從⽽改善環境衛⽣。在完善管理下，可避免⼟地 
 荒廢或被⼈胡亂傾倒泥頭或癈物，減少細菌及蚊蟲滋⽣的可能。另外，申請地點位於 
 物流業及露天倉地雲集地區，附近並無⺠居，周圍多屬露天倉地或貨櫃場地，加上業 
 界對物流貨運⽤地有⼀定需求，申請能製造就業機會外，還能紓緩其需求。於提交申 
 請前，申請⼈已徵詢過區内⼈⼠，並沒收到任何反對意⾒。 

 申請⼈承諾會以友善的態度，積極與各政府部⾨溝通，遵從各⽅⾯守則並努⼒進⾏多 
 樣紓緩環境影響⼯程，務求令場地獲得發展後仍不會對周圍環境帶來顯著影響。此申 
 請能有意義及靈活地善⽤地點資源。此乃屬過渡性質，為政府⽇後開闢⼟地帶來⽅便 
 ，發展項⽬簡單，容易還原，能與周圍環境配合，不存在任何永久建築，與未來規劃 
 ⽅向沒有抵觸，不會影響⼟地永久⽤途。申請⼈明⽩政府有意發展元朗⻄即洪⽔橋及 
 廈村區，團隊最終須配合洪⽔橋及廈村分區計劃⼤網圖的意願發展，申請⼈願意配合 
 ，只希望在發展計劃動⼯前作其他發展。倘若政府⼯程展開，此申請亦會告⼀段落。 
 敬希城規會能接受這份合乎情理的申請，並予以批准。 
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構築物(1)
用途：物流中心
建築物料：以金屬搭建
高度：約10米
層數：1層
面積：約2090平方米
總樓面面積：約2090平方米

構築物(2)
用途：寫字樓
建築物料：以金屬搭建
高度：約6米
層數：2層
面積：約20平方米
總樓面面積：約40平方米

構築物(3)
用途：消防泵房
建築物料：以金屬搭建
高度：約3米
層數：1層
面積：約5平方米
總樓面面積：約5平方米

構築物(4)
用途：電錶房
建築物料：以金屬搭建
高度：約3米
層數：1層
面積：約6平方米
總樓面面積：約6平方米

構築物(5)
用途：洗手間
建築物料：以金屬搭建
高度：約3米
層數：1層
面積：約2平方米
總樓面面積：約2平方米

構築物(6)
用途：洗手間
建築物料：以金屬搭建
高度：約3米
層數：1層
面積：約2平方米
總樓面面積：約2平方米

場地設計圖

SCALE 1 : 1000
行車路線

SCALE 1 : 1000
行車路線
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3個貨櫃車上落車位面積16米 x 3.5米

18米

Manoeuvring
Circle

1個私家車泊車位面積5米 x 2.5米
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A/HSK/432 

Town Planning Board Guidelines for 

Application for Open Storage and Port Back-up Uses 

(TPB PG-No.13F) 

 

1. On 27.3.2020, the Town Planning Board Guidelines for Application for Open Storage 

and Port Back-up Uses under Section 16 of the Town Planning Ordinance (TPB PG-No. 

13F) were promulgated, which set out the following criteria for New Development 

Areas: 

 

(a) The planning for various New Development Areas (NDAs) (including potential 

development areas) in the New Territories has been in progress and the land use 

proposals for some of these areas have been incorporated as appropriate into 

relevant statutory town plans. The NDAs will be implemented by phases. While it 

is envisaged that the existing open storage and port back-up uses in these areas will 

be gradually phased out, sympathetic consideration may be given to applications 

for continued operation of these uses during the interim period before the sites are 

required for NDA development.  

 

(b) For existing open storage and port back-up uses with previous planning approval(s) 

and/or permitted under the previous OZPs, sympathetic consideration may be given 

to the application (irrespective of whether the application is submitted by the 

applicant of previous approval or a different applicant) until the concerned site is 

required for implementation of NDA development, provided that the relevant 

approval conditions, if any, have been complied with. Technical assessments, 

where appropriate, should be submitted to demonstrate that the continued operation 

of the current uses would not have adverse drainage, traffic, visual, landscaping 

and environmental impacts on the surrounding areas and the concerns of the 

departments and local residents, if any, can be addressed through the 

implementation of the approval conditions.  

 

(c) In view of the impending implementation of NDAs, new open storage and port 

back-up uses are generally not encouraged to infiltrate into the NDAs. There is a 

general presumption against such uses at greenfield areas and/or at sites with land 

use compatibility issue, e.g. in close proximity to existing residential dwellings 

which may be subject to environmental nuisances caused by the open storage and 

port back-up uses. Applications will normally be rejected unless under exceptional 

circumstances.  

 

(d) Any approved temporary use and development should not jeopardize the long-term 

planned development on the respective site/the surrounding area under the NDA 

and the applicant should be advised that the site would be required by the 

government at any time during the planning approval period for implementation of 

government projects.  
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A/HSK/432

Previous S.16 Applications covering the Application Site

Approved Applications

Application No. Uses/Development
Date of

Consideration

A/YL-HT/361
Temporary Logistic Centre, Container Vehicle Park, Open

Storage of Containers and Construction Materials with Ancillary
Vehicle Repair Workshop for a Period of 3 Years

15.10.2004

A/YL-HT/515
Temporary Logistics Centre, Container Vehicle Park, Open

Storage of Containers and Construction Materials with Ancillary
Vehicle Repair Workshop for a Period of 3 Years

30.11.2007
(Revoked on
30.5.2008)

Rejected Application

Application No. Uses/Development Date of Consideration Rejection Reason

A/YL-HT/215
Temporary Open Storage of Construction

Materials (Mainly Steel Scaffolding
Racks) for a Period of 12 Months

19.10.2001 (1)

Rejection Reason:

(1) insufficient information to demonstrate no adverse drainage and environmental impacts.



- 2 -

A/HSK/432

Similar S.16 Applications within/straddling the subject “Commercial (5)” and “Open Space” Zones
on the Hung Shui Kiu & Ha Tsuen Outline Zoning Plan in the Past Five Years

Approved Applications

Application No. Uses/Development Date of
Consideration

A/HSK/59 Temporary Logistics Centre for a Period of 3 Years
20.4.2018

(Revoked on
20.7.2020)

A/HSK/108 Temporary Logistics Centre for a Period of 3 Years
7.12.2018

(Revoked on
7.3.2021)

A/HSK/145 Renewal of Planning Approval for “Temporary Logistics
Centre with Ancillary Site Office” for a Period of 3 Years

3.5.2019
(Revoked on
14.10.2021)

A/HSK/160 Temporary Logistics Centre for a Period of 3 Years
19.7.2019

(Revoked on
19.12.2021)

A/HSK/216 Temporary Logistics Centre for a Period of 3 Years
29.5.2020

(Revoked on
28.8.2022)

A/HSK/245 Temporary Logistics Centre for a Period of 3 Years 18.9.2020

A/HSK/283 Temporary Logistics Centre for a Period of 3 Years 28.5.2021

A/HSK/305 Temporary Logistics Centre for a Period of 3 Years 24.9.2021

A/HSK/321 Temporary Logistics Centre with Ancillary Site Office for a
Period of 3 Years 27.8.2021

A/HSK/338 Temporary Logistics Centre for a Period of 3 Years 22.4.2022

A/HSK/389 Proposed Temporary Logistics Centre with Ancillary Staff
Canteen for a Period of 3 Years 26.8.2022

A/HSK/391 Temporary Logistics Centre for a Period of 3 Years 26.8.2022

A/HSK/413 Temporary Logistics Centre for a Period of 3 Years 11.11.2022



- 3 -

A/HSK/432

Rejected Application

Application No. Uses/Development Date of Consideration Rejection Reason

A/HSK/249 Temporary Logistics Centre for a Period
of 3 Years 9.10.2020 (1)

Rejection Reason:

(1) three previous planning permissions granted for the site were revoked due to non-compliance with
approval conditions.
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Government Departments’ General Comments

1. Land Administration

Comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department:

� no adverse comment on the application; and

� according to his record, there is no lease modification/land exchange application or
building plan submission in relation to development at the Site approved/under
processing.

2. Traffic

(a) Comments of the Commissioner for Transport:

No adverse comment on the application from traffic engineering point of view.

(b) Comments of the Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways
Department:

No adverse comment on the application.

3. Drainage

Comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North, Drainage Services Department:

� no objection in principle to the application from drainage point of view; and

� should the application be approved, a condition should be stipulated requiring the
applicant to submit a drainage proposal, to implement and maintain the proposed
drainage facilities to his satisfaction.

4. Fire Safety

Comments of the Director of Fire Services:

� no objection in-principle to the proposal subject to the fire service installations (FSIs)
being provided to his satisfaction; and

� the applicant is advised to submit relevant layout plans incorporated with the proposed
FSIs to his department for approval.

5. Building Matters

Comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings Department:

� no adverse comment on the application under the Buildings Ordinance; and
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� no building plan submission in relation to the development at the application site (the
Site) was approved or under processing.

6. Long-term Development

(a) Comments of the Project Manager (West), Civil Engineering and Development
Department:

No objection to the application.

(b) Comments of the Director of Leisure and Cultural Services:

� no in-principle objection to the application;

� the Site is not on the priority list for development agreed by the Yuen Long District
Council; and

� his office has no plan to develop the Site into public open space at present.

7. Water Supplies

Comments of the Chief Engineer/Construction, Water Supplies Department:

No comment on the application.

8. District Officer’s Comments

Comments of the District Officer (Yuen Long), Home Affairs Department:

� no comment from departmental point of view; and

� his office has not received any comment from the locals on the application.
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Recommended Advisory Clauses

(a) to resolve any land issues relating to the development with the concerned owner(s) of the
application site (the Site);

(b) to note that the Site may be resumed at any time during the planning approval period for
implementation of Government projects;

(c) to note the comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department (DLO/YL,
LandsD) that:

� the Site comprises Old Schedule Agricultural Lots held under the Block Government
Lease which contains the restriction that no structures are allowed to be erected without
the prior approval of the Government;

� the private lots covered by Short Term Waivers (STW) in the Site are listed below:

Lots Nos.
in D.D.129 STWs Nos. Purposes

2384 S.A and 2384 S.B 2210 Workshop and Storage of Construction
Materials

2381 RP and 2382 4010
Temporary Open Storage of Containers,
Cargo Handling and Container Repair
Workshop

� the STW holder(s) should apply to his office for modification of the STW conditions
where appropriate and the lot owner(s) of the lot(s) without STW should apply to his
office to permit the structures to be erected or regularise any irregularities on Site, if any.
Besides, given the proposed use is temporary in nature, only application for regularisation
or erection of temporary structure(s) will be considered.  Application(s) for any of the
above will be considered by LandsD acting in the capacity of the landlord or lessor at its
sole discretion and there is no guarantee that such application(s) will be approved.  If such
application(s) is approved, it will be subject to such terms and conditions, including
among others the payment of rent or fee, as may be imposed by LandsD;

(d) to note the comments of the Commissioner for Transport that:

� sufficient manoeuvring space shall be provided within the Site. No vehicles are allowed
to queue back to public roads or reverse onto/from public roads; and

� the local track leading to the Site is not under Transport Department’s purview. The
applicant shall obtain consent of the owners/managing departments of the local track for
using it as the vehicular access to the Site;

(e) to note the comments of the Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways
Department that:

� adequate drainage measures shall be provided to prevent surface water running from the
Site to the nearby public roads and drains; and

� the access road connecting the Site with Lau Fau Shan Road is not and will not be
maintained by his office. His office should not be responsible for maintaining any access
connecting the Site with Lau Fau Shan Road;
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(f) to note the comments of the Director of Fire Services (D of FS) that:

� the layout plans should be drawn to scale and depicted with dimensions and nature of
occupancy. The location of proposed fire service installations (FSIs) to be installed should
be clearly marked on the layout plans; and

� if the proposed structure(s) is required to comply with the Buildings Ordinance (BO)
(Cap. 123), detailed fire service requirements will be formulated upon receipt of formal
submission of general building plans;

(g) to note the comments of the Director of Environmental Protection that the applicant is advised
to follow the latest ‘Code of Practice on Handling Environmental Aspects of Temporary Uses
and Open Storage Sites’ in order to minimise the possible environmental impacts on the
surrounding areas;

(h) to note the comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings
Department (CBS/NTW, BD) that:

� the Site shall be provided with means of obtaining access thereto from a street and
emergency vehicular access in accordance with Regulations 5 and 41D of the Building
(Planning) Regulations (B(P)R) respectively. If the Site does not abut on a specified street
of not less than 4.5 m wide, its permitted development intensity shall be determined under
Regulation 19(3) of the B(P)R at the building plan submission stage;

� if the existing structures (not being a New Territories Exempted House) are erected on
leased land without the approval of the Building Authority (BA), they are unauthorized
building works (UBW) under the Buildings Ordinance (BO) and should not be designated
for any proposed use under the application;

� for UBW erected on leased land, enforcement action may be taken by the BD to effect their
removal in accordance with the prevailing enforcement policy against UBW as and when
necessary. The granting of any planning approval should not be construed as an acceptance
of any existing building works or UBW on the Site under the BO;

� before any new building works (including containers / open sheds as temporary buildings,
demolition and land filling, etc.) are to be carried out on the Site, prior approval and consent
of the BA should be obtained, otherwise they are UBW under the BO. An Authorized
Person should be appointed as the co-ordinator for the proposed building works in
accordance with the BO; and

� any temporary shelters or converted containers for office, storage, washroom or other uses
are considered as temporary buildings are subject to the control of Part VII of the B(P)R.
Detailed checking under the BO will be carried out at building plan submission stage; and

(i) to note the comment of the Project Manager (West), Civil Engineering and Development
Department (PM(W), CEDD) that the Site falls within the boundary of Hung Shui Kiu/Ha Tsuen
New Development Area (HSK/HT NDA). To ensure timely and orderly implementation, the
development of HSK/HT NDA and relevant site formation and infrastructure works would be
implemented in three phases, viz. First Phase development, Second Phase development and
Remaining Phase development. The lots concerned fall within the site under Remaining Phase
development of HSK/HT NDA. While the detailed implementation programme for the project
is still being formulated, it is envisaged that the site formation and engineering infrastructure
works for the Remaining Phase development will commence in 2030. The applicant is required
to pay attention to the development programme and ensure his proposed development would
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not affect or impose constraints to the proposed works under HSK/HT NDA.
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